

# DRAFT MINUTES OF THE BUSINESS SERVICES MEETING HELD ON THE 11<sup>TH</sup> FEBRUARY 2021 AT 7.30pm VIA VIRTUAL ACCESS

Present:

Cllr A Snape Cllr I Blazeby Cllr A Lutley Cllr J Roberts Cllr J Dann

Rob McGregor- Town Clerk Stephanie Stanley- Deputy Town Clerk Jon Barkat- Business & Facilities Manager Member of the public - 0

# 1238. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received and accepted for Councillor Badham (unwell), Councillor Dodds (unwell) and Councillor Williams (personal commitments).

Councillor Gleave entered the meeting at this time.

#### 1239. <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

To receive Statutory Declarations of Interests from Members in relation to:

- (a) Disclosable Pecuniary interests in any agenda item none.
- **(b)** Non-Pecuniary interests in any agenda item none.

# 1240. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman advised that item 11d – investment strategy – would not be covered at the meeting as there would be a presentation from a specialist company at the next meeting.

# 1241. PUBLIC OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present.

# 1242. MEMBERS QUESTIONS

No questions.

## **1243. MINUTES**

**a.** For Members to receive and adopt the Minutes of the Business Services Committee held on 14<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

Members received and approved as a true record, the minutes of the Business Services Committee held on the 14<sup>th</sup> January 2021 via virtual access.

# 1244. MATTERS ARISING

a. Minutes of the Business Services Committee 14<sup>th</sup> January 2021.

The Chairman asked for an update on the unpresented cheques discussed at the last meeting. Members were informed that the organisations had been contacted and their intentions were to not submit the cheques, therefore the cheques had been written off.

# 1245. <u>ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION</u>

## a. Councillor Email Addresses & Sharepoint

The Chairman explained the importance and benefits of having Councillor emails to replace the private accounts used at present. He also gave a briefing around how the Sharepoint plan could be changed to M365 Business Basic which would provide access to emails, Office 365 and Teams. This would create enhanced security for pink papers and would be on a monthly rolling contract. It was intended for future Council and Committee meetings to be hosted through Teams instead of Zoom.

It was <u>resolved</u> to move Councillor accounts from SharePoint Online Plan to M365 Business Basic which included Microsoft Teams, emails, and other applications for £3.80 per month, which was the same cost as the current SharePoint access Members had.

# 1246. <u>ITEMS FOR INFORMATION</u>

## a. <u>Business & Facilities Manager's Report</u>

Members noted the report circulated.

i) Projects Update - Noted. The Business & Facilities Manager advised that the reports were getting shorter as phase 2 of the building upgrades were near completion.

## 1247. PUBLIC OPEN SESSION

No members of the public attended.

#### 1248. EXEMPT ITEMS

The following resolution will be **moved** that is advisable in the public interest that the public and press are excluded whilst the following exempt item issue is discussed.

# 11a) Financial Reports

Councillor Lutley joined the meeting at this time.

Members noted the reports and asked questions.

## 11b) <u>Business and Facilities Manager's Report</u>

It was <u>resolved</u> to install air conditioning in the Rendezvous Café at a cost of £7,863.52. Funds for this would be required from the Rolling Capital Fund.

# 11c) Mobile Phones

Members discussed the staff team using personal mobile phones for work purposes, especially during lockdown.

It was <u>resolved</u> to contribute towards the Town Clerk and the Management Team's mobile phone bills, to be taxed as part of PAYE. This allowance would be instead of a company phone.

# 11d) <u>Investment Strategy</u>

This item was deferred to the next meeting.

Pursuant to section 1(2) of the public bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960 Council **resolve** to exclude the public and press by reason of the confidential nature of the business about to be transacted.



# FLITWICK TOWN COUNCIL

# **Standing Orders for Contracts**

Adopted by Council: ??? 2021. Review Date: 2022

	Page	
1.	General	1
2.	Delegated authority to enter into contracts	2
3.		2
	Contracts of up to £25000	2
5.	Requirement to tender	2
	Open Competitive Tender	3
	Ad Hoc Approved List	3
	Standing Approved List	3
9.	Approved List of Another Authority	2 2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
10.	Established Procurement Specialist	3
11.	Selection of Tenderers or invitees	
12.	Form of invitation to tender and submission of tenders	3
	Extension of time	4
	Opening of Tenders	4
	Late Tenders	4
	Alteration to Tenders	4
	Acceptance of Tenders	4
	Contracts to be in writing	5
	Assignment	5
	Liquidated damages	5 5
	Performance Bonds	5
	Retention	5 5
	Cancellation	
	Nominated Sub-Contractors	6
25.	Engagement of Consultants	6

#### 1. **GENERAL**

- 1.1 The following Standing Orders for Contracts were adopted by Council on ??? 2021. They set out the procedures by which the Council will enter into contracts for the provision of goods, services, materials and work. Every contract made by or on behalf of the Council shall comply with these procedure rules and no exception from any of the provisions shall be made otherwise than by direction of the Council or under Standing Order. These Standing Orders for Contracts should be read in conjunction with the Council's Financial Procedures, Standing Orders and its Procurement Policy applying at the time.
- 1.2 The Orders do not apply to contracts for the sale or purchase of land or buildings other than as set out in this Order. Every contract relating to the sale or purchase of any land or buildings shall be in writing and be signed on behalf of the Council by the Proper Officer. Purchases of land should not be above the current market value as determined by the Council's appointed valuer and

sales of land should not be below the current market value as determined by the Council's appointed valuer. Where this is not the case a report should be made to Council setting out the reasons for such variation, which may take into account any community benefits or justification on the grounds that it helps fulfil a wider objective of the Council.

- 1.3 Subject to Rule 1.2 every contract made by or on behalf of the Council shall comply with
  - 1.3.1 these Standing Orders for Contracts
  - 1.3.2 the Council's Financial Regulations
  - 1.3.3 the Council's Standing Orders
  - 1.3.4 all relevant statutory provisions including any relevant E.U. directive
  - 1.3.5 any direction by the Council, committees, sub-committees having appropriate delegated authority.
- 1.4 These Contract Procedure Rules shall not apply or may be varied where or to the extent that:
  - 1.4.1 the Council so resolves
  - 1.4.2 statute or subordinate legislation prescribes otherwise

## 2 DELEGATED AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS

- 2.1 The Proper Officer shall have power to accept tenders (where required) and to enter into contracts on behalf of the Council, when the decision and budget have been approved by Council.
- 2.2 The Proper Officer or Responsible Financial Officer (RFO), if different, have authority to issue official orders or letters for work, goods and services as set out in the Financial Regulations.

# 3. ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS & SERVICES UPTO £3000

- Orders for work, goods and services up to the value of £3000 are not subject to the Standing Orders for Contracts, nor are formal quotations required but orders must comply with the Council's Financial Regulations [see particularly FR 11.1 (i)].
- 3.2 Orders for work, goods and services which would normally be considered as one transaction shall not be divided into different orders so that the Standing Orders for Contracts are deemed not to apply.

## 4 CONTRACTS OF UP TO £25,000

- 4.1 Tenders need not be invited for contracts estimated to have a value of £25,000 or less but 3 quotations shall be obtained in accordance with the Council's Financial Regulations. The Council's Procurement Policy states that in all contracts for goods, materials or services over £25,000, an evaluation model encompassing both price and quality, will be developed in advance against which best value can be judged.
- 4.2 Three quotations need not be invited in circumstances set out in regulation 11 of the Financial Regulations, or in cases where genuine competition is not available because of the specialist nature of the work or goods, all subject to a resolution of Council which embodies the reason for not doing so.

## 5 **REQUIREMENTS FOR TENDER**

- 5.1 Subject to the exceptions in Rule 5.2 below, tenders shall be invited where the contract sum is estimated to be above £25,000.
- 5.2 Tenders need not be invited in circumstances set out in 11.1 of the Financial Regulations, subject to a resolution of Council which embodies the reason for not doing so.
- 5.3 Where the value of a supply, services or design contract is likely to exceed £189,330, or a construction contract is likely to exceed £4,733,252 (or other threshold specified by the Office of Government Commerce from time to time), the Council must consider whether the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 (EU Directive 2014/24/EU) apply to the contract and if so the Council

must comply with EU procurement rules; which will include advertising in the Official Journal of the European Union. See also Financial Regulations 11.1 b, c and e.

- 5.4 Where tenders are required, one of the following methods shall be used:
  - 5.4.1 Open competitive tender (Rule 6)
  - 5.4.2 Ad hoc approved list (Rule 7)
  - 5.4.3 Standing approved list (Rule 8)
  - 5.4.4 Approved list of another Council (Rule 9)
  - 5.4.5 Established procurement specialist (Rule 10)

## 6 **OPEN COMPETITIVE TENDERS**

Tenders shall be invited after giving at least 14 days public notice in at least one local newspaper circulating in the area of the Authority, on the Council's website and in such trade journals as the Proper Officer has considered appropriate stating the nature and purpose of the contract, inviting tenders and stating the last date when tenders will be accepted. Any notice issued shall contain a Statement of the effect of Standing Orders Nos. 20a and 20b.

# 7 AD HOC APPROVED LIST

7.1 Tenders shall be invited after giving notice in the manner set out in Rule 6 seeking applications to be placed on a list from which selected contractors will be invited to submit tenders.

## 8 STANDING APPROVED LIST

- 8.1 Tenders shall be invited from persons included in a list approved by the Council for the supply of goods or materials of specified categories values or amounts or for the carrying out of specified categories of work
- 8.2 The list shall be compiled in the following manner:
  - 8.2.1 Notices inviting applications for inclusion in the list shall be published not less than 28 days before the list is compiled in at least one local newspaper, on the Council's website and where appropriate, one trade journal.
  - 8.2.2 No person shall be included in the list unless, at the time of compilation of the list, the Responsible Financial Officer is satisfied as to his or her financial status and suitability.
  - 8.2.3 The approved list may be amended as required from time to time by the Council and shall be reviewed at intervals not exceeding two years.

## 9. APPROVED LIST OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY

9.1 Tenders shall be invited from persons included in a list approved by the Central Bedfordshire Council for the supply of goods or materials of specified categories values or amounts or for the carrying out of specified categories of work

# 10 ESTABLISHED PROCUREMENT SPECIALISTS

10.1 Where large, high value tender exercises take place, in areas in which the Council have limited expertise, it may be necessary to engage the use of established procurement specialists. These specialists will undertake the tender process on behalf of the Council, subject to compliance with Financial Regulations for the opening of tenders.

#### 11 SELECTION OF TENDERERS OR INVITEES

- 11.1 The selection of persons from whom tenders shall be invited shall be delegated to the Proper Officer in consultation with the Chairman of Business Services or Chairman of Corporate Services.
- 11.2 In inviting applications for inclusion in a list of approved tenderers or in selecting persons from whom tenders are to be invited, steps shall be taken to ensure fair competition. It may be necessary to supplement approved lists in cases where the specialist nature of the work or goods indicates that competition will be limited, subject to a resolution of Council which embodies the reason for doing so.

Where a contract will involve a design element, or in the case of other construction works, the chosen process may be varied minimally to ensure that the quality of the design is properly taken in to account. Construction processes which are taking forward the Government Construction Strategy may also be used.

#### 12 FORM OF INVITATION TO TENDER AND SUBMISSION OF TENDERS

- 12.1 All tenders shall be required to be submitted on a Form of Tender approved by the Proper Officer. This Form shall include a statement that the Council will not be bound to accept any tender and reserves the right to accept a tender other than the one which is the lowest price or not to accept any tender at all.
- 12.2 The invitations to tender shall state that no tender will be considered unless contained in an unmarked plain sealed envelope and endorsed "Tender" followed by the subject to which it relates.
- 12.3 Every tender shall be addressed to the Town Clerk (Proper Officer) and the tender shall remain in his/her custody, or that of his nominated representative, until the time appointed for its opening. (See also 10.1)

#### 13 **EXTENSION OF TIME**

- 13.1 Where the Proper Officer considers it to be in the best interests of the Council the time within which tenders must be received may be extended after giving notice of such extension of time in the following manner: -
  - 13.1.1 Open competitive tenders in accordance with Rule 5.
  - 13.1.2 Ad hoc approved list / Established procurement specialist by giving 14 days written notice to each of the selected contractors.
  - 13.1.3 **Standing approved list** by giving 14 days written notice to each of the relevant persons on the list.

## 14 **OPENING OF TENDERS**

- 14.1 All tenders for a contract shall be opened at the same time and as soon as possible after the closing time for the acceptance of tenders. The tenders will be opened by the Proper Officer or other nominated officer in the presence of two Members of Council. (See also 10.1)
- 14.2 The Proper Officer shall prepare and maintain a register of tenders received and shall record in that register the following particulars:
  - 13.2.1 the last date and time for the receipt of tenders
  - 13.2.2 the date and time the tender was actually received
  - 13.2.3 the name of the tenderer and the amount of the tender
  - 13.2.4 the date and time they were opened and by whom.
  - 13.2.5 the signature of the officer to whom the tenders were handed after opening.
- 14.3 All persons required to be present at the opening of tenders shall immediately sign against the relevant particulars in the register and shall also sign each page of the tender as evidence of such tenders having been opened by them or in their presence.
- 14.4 Following the opening of tenders invited the Proper Officer shall write to all persons who were invited to tender but who failed to tender to ascertain the reasons for that failure.

#### 15 **LATE TENDERS**

15.1 Any tender received late will be returned promptly to the tenderer by the Proper Officer. A late tender which has been received may be opened in the presence of the two Members to ascertain the name and address of the tenderer but no details of the tender shall be disclosed.

#### 16 ALTERATIONS TO TENDERS

16.1 Where the tender reveals errors or discrepancies, which would affect the tender figure in an otherwise successful tender, the tenderer shall be told of the errors and discrepancies and given an opportunity of confirming, correcting or withdrawing the offer.

#### 17 ACCEPTANCE OF TENDERS

- 17.1 In accepting a tender, consideration will be given to price and quality. A suitable pre-determined price-quality model (Evaluation Model) will be devised by the Proper Officer or representative in accordance with the Council's Procurement Policy. Selection of the best tender will be based on this evaluation.
- 17.2 If no tenders are received or if all tenders are identical, the Council may make such arrangements for procuring the goods or materials or executing the works as it thinks fit.

#### 18 **CONTRACTS TO BE IN WRITING**

- 18.1 Every contract which exceeds £3000 shall be in writing in a form approved by the Proper Officer.
- 18.2 Every contract shall specify, amongst other things:
  - 18.2.1 the goods, materials, works, matters, or things, to be furnished, supplied or done (including any appropriate technical specifications)
  - 18.2.2 the price to be paid with a statement of discount or other deductions
  - 18.2.3 where applicable, the time or times that the contract is to be performed
  - 18.2.4 how the contractor will be accountable for performance, and any information or reports that he will be required to submit.
- 18.3 The Proper Officer shall sign or witness every contract not required to be made under seal on behalf of the Council.
- 18.4 Every contract for which provision has been made in the approved annual estimates and/or approved by the appropriate committee or sub-committee of the Council pursuant to Standing Orders and being in value of amount less than £3,000 shall be entered into on behalf of the Council by the Proper Officer by issuing an official order only.

## 19 **ASSIGNMENT**

19.1 In every written contract for the execution of work or the supply of goods or materials, the following clause shall be inserted:

"The contractor shall be prohibited from transferring or assigning directly or indirectly, to any person or persons whatever, any portion of the contract without the written permission of the Council. Sub-letting of any part(s) of the work, except to the extent permitted in writing by the officer concerned, shall be prohibited".

## 20 **LIQUIDATED DAMAGES**

20.1 Every contract that exceeds £50,000 shall, where considered appropriate by the Proper Officer, provide for liquidated damages to be paid by the contractor in case the terms of the contract are not duly performed.

## 21 **PERFORMANCE BONDS**

21.1 Where a contract is estimated to exceed £150,000 in value and is for the execution of the works, or for the supply of goods or materials by a particular date or series of dates, the Finance & Governance Committee shall consider whether the Council should require security for its due performance and shall either certify that no such security is necessary or shall specify in the conditions of tender the nature and amount of any security to be given. In the latter event, the Council shall require and will take a bond or other sufficient security for the due performance of the contract.

#### 22 **RETENTION**

Works contracts, which are estimated to exceed £50,000 in value, will be subject to a defects period. The Council will retain a percentage of the monies due to the contractor for a period that

the Proper Officer deems appropriate, having regard to the current practice in the relevant industry and to the circumstances of the contract.

#### 23 CANCELLATION

23.1 Every contract will include a clause allowing the Council to cancel the contract and to recover costs if the contractor has offered, or given, any gift or consideration whatsoever as an inducement or reward to obtain the contract, or any other contract with the Council.

## 24 NOMINATED SUB-CONTRACTORS

- 24.1 Where a sub-contractor or supplier is to be nominated to a main contractor the following provisions shall have effect.
- 24.2 Where the estimated amount of a sub-contract exceeds £25,000 then, unless the Proper Officer certifies that it is not reasonably practicable to obtain competitive tenders, tenders for the nomination shall be invited and dealt with in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules as if they were for a contract with the Council.
- 24.3 A nominated sub-contractor must be willing to enter into a contract with the main contractor on terms which indemnify the main contractor against his own obligations under the main contract in relation to the work or goods included in the sub-contract.

## 25 **ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANTS**

In the event of the Council engaging the services of consultants, these Contract Procedure Rules will apply where relevant, and subject to approved exemptions set out in the Financial Regulations.

